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2022

3,192,939.93 26.28
3,125,453.40 25.73
1,559,569.66 12.84
1,381,035.54 11.37
771,164.33 6.35
303,795.04 2.50
10,333,957.90 85.06
624,574.86 5.14
400,461.49 3.30
1,025,036.35 8.44
11,358,994.25 93.50
789,408.78 6.50
(121%g2é403.03) 100.00

19
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2022
HDFC BANK ADR US LINE 18,050 63.88 | 1,152,984.46 56.09 | 1,012,424.50 .33
INFOSYS LTD ADR US LINE 49,500 10.23 506,373.39 20.12 995,940.00 .20
m:l\llJV/'-:\ll:C_SrE_hll_lvlngNDUCTOR 50,000 8.51 425,556.41 17.97 898,264.38 .39
EEIROLEO BRASILEIRO PRF 138,658 5.35 741,836.20 6.05 839,555.96 .91
EIIEI,\_“IEANCE INDS GOR LI 11,143 51.53 574,234.65 72.80 811,210.40 .68
VALE SA BRL 41,577 9.85 409,590.62 16.55 688,148.51 .66
TENCENT HLDGS LTD HKD 9,900 28.29 280,038.71 43.31 428,726.54 .53
MEDIATEK INC TWD 15,000 18.02 270,357.93 28.01 420,205.03 .46
géﬂCSSBﬁZESCO SA ADR 108,020 4.26 459,962.09 3.65 394,273.00 .25
10 AgﬁuugNﬁﬁgCO HOLDINGS 78,600 5.75 452,271.14 4.88 383,568.01 .16
11 | SUZANO SA BRL 31,300 11.75 367,744.02 10.19 319,014.62 .63
12 E&SG AN INSURANCE H SHS 49,500 7.81 386,631.91 6.37 315,110.23 .59
13 ﬁﬂé BANK GDR USD LI 6,057 59.05 357,650.37 50.50 305,878.50 .52
14 | AIA GROUP LTD HKD 30,600 10.36 317,066.54 9.93 303,795.04 .50
15 (H:E[I)NA VENGNIU DAIRY €O 55,000 6.24 343,128.40 5.42 298,252.48 .46
16 CHINA NERCHANTS BK H SHS 45,000 5.61 252,510.30 5.98 269,258.80 .22
HK LINE
17 | LOJAS RENNER SA BRL 53,250 6.86 365,548.04 4.94 263,107.30 .17
18 %gYA TECHNOLOGY CORP 111,000 2.68 297,459.82 2.17 241,100.25 .98
19 | MEITUAN CLASS B HKD 11,300 34.50 389,905.77 18.98 214,434.64 77
20 :Aéig SHART HOME CO LTD 54,998 3.78 208,073.25 3.40 186,795.30 .54
21 (H:%NTRY GARDEN SERVICES 39,000 7.21 281,159.97 4.05 158,056.92 .30
22 | XP INC CLASS A USD 5,887 50.12 295,058.85 23.95 140,993.65 .16
23 | JD.COM INC CLASS A HKD 4,804 32.84 157,785.39 29.26 140,571.31 .16
24 | RUMO SA BRL 36,800 4.35 159,969.58 3.56 130,978.53 .08
25 EQEVIDA PARTICIPACOES 62,000 3.26 201,833.37 1.88 116,766.71 .96
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2022
Sgglguoz\/ﬁggggl co PN 2023/ /14 1,000 308,608.90 275,494.70 2.27
EaE;g:g\gngUTAl coLm 2022/11/28 972 294,954.35 269,746.83 2.22
I(E%NSQDEEEEN ENERGY UBS 2022/12/ 19,497 277,234.68 189,382.16 1.56
iéNgWAgggﬁmgzco LD LB 2022/ / 68,000 243,804.38 159,698.00 1.31
é;vAgginggNGRUI PN L 2022/ /29 30,200 257,443.73 130,714.66 1.08

2022

2022
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2022
11.33 1,460

2013 15 75,807 9,768 (12.83) (1.653)
10 9.75 1,256
2014 15 59,004 7,603 (9.75) (1.256)
11 8.96 1,155
2015 15 46,675 6,015 (8.96) (1.155)
12 7.00 902
2016 15 32,263 4,157 (7.00) (902)
13 9.89 1,274
2017 15 39,237 5,056 (9.89) (1.274)
14 13.64 1,758
2018 15 39,765 5,124 (13.64) (1.758)
15 10.93 1,408
2019 15 30,132 3,883 (11.93) (1.537)
16 12.34 1,590
2020 15 30,318 3,907 (13.34) (1.719)
17 12.53 1,615
2021 15 26,220 3,319 (13.53) (1.743)
18 11.02 1,420
2022 15 19,443 2,505 (11.02) (1.420)
2021 24,685 3,181 12.36 1,593
24,446 3,150 12.63 1,628

22,547 2,905 11.77 1,517

22,547 2,905 11.91 1,535

21,314 2,747 11.49 1,481

10 21,468 2,766 11.72 1,510

11 19,818 2,554 10.98 1,415

12 19,582 2,523 10.93 1,408

2022 18,922 2,438 10.80 1,392
16,223 2,090 9.31 1,200

13,590 1,751 8.44 1,088

12,148 1,565 7.61 981
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12 0.00 0.00
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14 0.00 0.00
15 1.00 128.86
16 1.00 128.86
17 1.00 128.86
18 0.00 0.00
2012 17 1.00
14 2018 16 1.00

19.90
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262,320 964,650 6,690,760

262,320 964,650 6,690,760

10 835,060 1,472,460 6,053,360
835,060 1,472,460 6,053,360

11 47,840 889,420 5,211,780
47,840 889,420 5,211,780

12 32,650 637,260 4,607,170
32,650 637,260 4,607,170

13 104,900 744,170 3,967,900
104,900 744,170 3,967,900

14 276,180 1,329,260 2,914,820
276,180 1,329,260 2,914,820

15 148,970 305,830 2,757,960
148,970 305,830 2,757,960

16 81,000 381,360 2,457,600
81,000 381,360 2,457,600

17 11,370 375,580 2,093,390
11,370 375,580 2,093,390

18 2,480 330,900 1,764,970
2,480 330,900 1,764,970
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2022 15
2022 2021
6 883,371 113,831 657,913 84,779
2,3 18,690,271 2,408,428 26,661,941 3,435,658
7 139,141 17,930 1,306,816 168,396
19,712,783 2,540,189 28,626,670 3,688,833
17,649,700 2,274,340 20,933,900 2,697,542

(96,029,515)  (12,374,363)  (95,365,796)  (12,288,836)

97,822,867 12,605,455 100,438,959 12,942,564
19,443,052 2,505,432 26,007,063 3,351,270

8 269,731 34,758 2,619,607 337,563
269,731 34,758 2,619,607 337,563

19,712,783 2,540,189 28,626,670 3,688,833

10
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2022 15
2022 2021

13 (1,824,278) (235,076) 2,617,822 337,333
(1,824,278) (235,076) 2,617,822 337,333
10 207,774 26,774 220,866 28,461
10 184,701 23,801 196,325 25,298
10 25,366 3,269 26,995 3,479
10 16,146 2,081 17,178 2,214
10 82,834 10,674 67,211 8,661
31,175 4,017 29,819 3,842
175,886 22,665 142,196 18,323
723,882 93,279 700,590 90,278
2 (67,932) (8,754) (68,170) (8,784)
(2,616,092) (337,110) 1,849,062 238,270
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15

20,933,900 (95,365,796) 100,438,959 26,007,063
(2,616,092) (2,616,092)

24,800 5,342 30,142
(3,309,000) (669,061) (3,978,061)
17,649,700 (96,029,515) 97,822,867 19,443,052
24,576,000 (94,941,291) 100,683,287 30,317,996
1,849,062 1,849,062

(2,093,390) (2,093,390)

113,700 1,317 115,017
(3,755,800) (425,822) (4,181,622)
20,933,900 (95,365,796) 100,438,959 26,007,063
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1990
2004
2015 10

2013 15
2004 16

AIFM

102 FRS102

2022 14 11

FRS102

2022 15 2021 15
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2022 15 Jiangsu Hengrui Medicine ML CW 29-Jul-22, Merrill Lynch Kweichow Moutai Co CW
28-Nov-22, UBS AG London Kweichow Moutai Co CW 14-Feb-23, UBS AG London Longi Green Energy CW 08-Dec-22, and UBS AG
London Ping An Bank Co Ltd CW 08-Jun-22 2021 15 Jiangsu Hengrui

Medicine ML CW 09-Aug-21, Merrill Lynch Gree Electric CW 05-Jul-21, Merrill Lynch Kweichow Moutai Co CW 13-Dec-
21 UBS Kweichow Moutai Co CW 08-Feb-22

FRS102 39

FRS102 22

FRS102 22

12
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FRS102 7.1A
BBH
2022 2021

17,348,576 24,321,326

1,341,695 2,340,615

18,690,271 26,661,941

17,348,576 17,348,576

1,341,695 1,341,695

17,348,576 1,341,695 18,690,271

24,321,326 24,321,326

2,340,615 2,340,615

24,321,326 2,340,615 26,661,941
1,341,695 2021 2,340,615

82/239



2022

15

934,514

2022

2021

15

12

EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2021

4.81 2021 15 1,333,097 5.13

2021 15

COVID-19
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2022 2021
2,489,512 3,190,059
11,604 2,236
3,278,071 374 5,449,645 151
73 72
71,976
2,298,939 13,564 2,577,456 213,166
8,066,522 97,591 11,217,160 215,625
2022 2021
124,476 159,503
580 112
163,903 19 272,482 7
4 4
3,599
114,947 678 128,873 10,658
403,326 4,880 560,858 10,781
BBH
BBH BBH
BBH BBH
BBH
2021
10
10
10
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50

2022
19,443,052 19,443,052
269,731 269,731
19,712,783 19,712,783

2021
26,007,063 26,007,063
2,619,607 2,619,607
28,626,670 28,626,670

BBH BBH
2022 2021

2 3
25,206 4,065
113,933 1,302,748
139,141 1,306,816

85/239



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

10

10

2022 2021
4 1
110,372 377,939
2,093,390
159,355 148,277
269,731 2,619,607

2022 2021
2,093,390 2,457,600
2,480 11,370
(330,900) (375,580)
1,764,970 2,093,390

1.88
0.07
0.90
0.70
0.10

2022 2021
22,379 31,073
19,893 27,608
2,735 3,827
1,741 2,432
33,403 10,174
28,992 28,981
50,212 44,182
159,355 148,277
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FRS102
2022 15
2021 15 2,093,390
2021 20
2022 2021
3,611,914 5,014,274
168 33
3,612,082 5,014,307
(766,765) (2,729,933)
(379) (126)
(767,144) (2,730,059)
(5,426,193) (268,853)
756,951 601,660
26 767
(1,824,278) 2,617,822
2022 2021 2020
19,443,052 26,219,726 30,350,080
(32,084)
(212,663)
19,443,052 26,007,063 30,317,996
1,764,970 2,093,390 2,457,600
11.02 12.53 12.34
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15
1997 739 B
(a 1997
(b
16
2022 2021
5.5289 5.1971
0.8729 0.8246
7.7842 7.7542
0.7283 0.7323
76.2801
27.6030 28.0070
17
18
2021
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19,191 1,620,687

BBH
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2022

ATFM
2022

89/239



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2022 15
2021 17.20
Banco Bradesco SA ADR 104,400 386,280 1.99
Hapvida Participacoes INV SA 70,000 128,760 0.66
Itau Unibanco Holdings ADR 86,800 367,164 1.89
Lojas Renner Sa 58,850 263,547 1.36
Magazine Luiza Sa 62,000 68,292 0.35
Petroleo Brasileiro PRF 150,778 826,853 4.25
Rumo SA 42,400 124,695 0.64
Suzano SA 34,500 390,184 2.01
Vale SA 45,123 687,181 3.53
3,242,956 16.68
2021 16.34
Bilibili Inc Class Z 3,180 121,575 0.63
China Mengniu Dairy Co 56,000 340,638 1.75
Country Garden SVCS Holdings Co Ltd 43,000 239,742 1.23
Meituan Class B 19,100 541,283 2.78
Tencent Holdings Ltd 10,600 644,643 3.32
XP Inc Class A USD 6,654 195,029 1.00
2,082,910 10.71
2021 6.66
China Merchants Bank - H 48,000 381,696 1.96
Haier Smart Home Co Ltd - H 55,442 226,847 1.17
Ping An Insurance - H 54,000 425,592 2.19
1,034,135 5.32
2021 0.00
0zon Holdings Plc 4,400 106,920 0.55
TCS Group Holdings Plc 9,937 697,379 3.59
804,299 4.14
2021 4.80

AIA Group Ltd 32,800 356,054 1.83

356,054 1.83
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2021 20.20
Axis Bank 6,567 324,410 1.67
HDFC Bank Ltd 18,050 1,271,081 6.53
Infosys Ltd 72,292 1,850,675 9.52
Reliance Industries 11,892 818,170 4.21
4,264,336 21.93
2021 0.00
Yandex N.V. Class A 6,190 337,417 1.74
337,417 1.74
2021 18.41
MMC Norilsk Nickel PJSC 12,408 369,634 1.90
0il Company Lukoil PJSC E/C 1,376 119,052 0.61
Oil Company Lukoil PJSC US 7,335 640,345 3.29
Rosneft Oil Co 98,872 771,202 3.97
Sberbank of Russia PJSC 300,688 1,027,297 5.29
2,927,530 15.06
2021 9.91
Mediatek Inc 17,000 655,907 3.37
Nanya Technology Corporation 122,000 328,392 1.69
Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing TWD 54,000 1,314,640 6.76
2,298,939 11.82
2021 93.52 17,348,576 89.23
2021 8.13
Jiangsu Hengrui Medicine ML CW 29-Jul-22 33,600 247,393 1.27
M§CE;;I Lynch Kweichow Moutai Co Ltd CW 28- 1,206 354,706 1.83
602,099 3.10
2021 0.87
UBS AG London Kweichow Moutai Co CW 14-Feb-23 1,000 293,531 1.51
UBS AG London Longi Green Energy CW 08-Dec-22 20,297 252,030 1.29
UBS AG London Ping An Bank Co Ltd CW 08-Jun-22 75,500 194,035 1.00
739,596 3.80

2021 9.00 1,341,695 6.90
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2022 15

AIA Group Ltd 34,000
Alibaba Group Holding Ltd 41,900
Anhui Conch Cement - H 57,000
Bilibili Inc Class Z 3,660

China Mengniu Dairy Co 58,000

Country Garden SVCS Holdings Co Ltd 43,000

Galaxy Entertainment Group 47,000
Hapvida Participacoes INV SA 79,000

HDFC Bank Ltd 5,515
Infosys Ltd 55,508
Jiangsu Hengrui Medicine ML CW 09-Aug-21 39,500
Jiangsu Hengrui Medicine ML CW 29-Jul-22 37,200

Kweichow Moutai Co Ltd CW 28-Nov-22 1,206

Lojas Renner SA 68,450

Magazine Luiza Sa 62,000

Meituan Class B 22,400

Merrill Lynch Gree Electric CW 05-Jul-21 49,300
Merrill Lynch Gree Electric CW 16-Jun-22 45,300 45,300
Merrill Lynch Kweichow Moutai Co Ltd CW 13-

Dec-21 3,306
MMC Norilsk Nickel PJSC 14,655

Mobile Telesystems PJSC 57,200
New Oriental ED & Technology GP Inc 24,260
0il Company Lukoil PJSC US 5,579
Ozon Holdings Plc 5,000

Reliance Industries 3,340

Rosneft Oil Co 76,703
Sberbank of Russia PJSC 131,312
Suzano SA 41,300

Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing TWD 26,000
Tal Education Group CL A USD 11,500
TCS Group Holdings Plc 11,994

Tencent Holdings Ltd 11,800
UBS AG London Kweichow Moutai Co CW 14-Feb-23 1,000

UBS AG London Longi Green Energy CW 08-Dec-22 20,297

UBS AG London Ping An Bank Co Ltd CW 08-Jun-22 84,300

UBS Kweichow Moutai Co CW 08-Feb-22 1,000
XP Inc Class A USD 7,380

Yandex N.V. Class A 7,500

YDUQS Participacoes SA 45,500

20
20
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New Major Economies Fund
Statement of Financial Position
As at 15t January 2022

2022 2021

Notes us$ Us$
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 6 883,371 657,913
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 2,3 18,690,271 26,661,941
Debtors 7 139,141 1,306,816
Total assets 19,712,783 28,626,670
Equity
Unit capital 17,649,700 20,933,900
Unit premium (96,029,515) (95,365,796)
Retained earnings 97,822,867 100,438,959
Total equity 19,443,052 26,007,063
Current Liabilities
Creditors 8 269,731 2,619,607
Total liabilities 269,731 2,619,607
Total equity and liabilities 19,712,783 28,626,670

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

On behal T of SMT Fund Services (Ireland) Limited

Peter Callaghan Keiji Nakamura

Date: 10th May 2022
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New Major Economies Fund
Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 15% January 2022

2022 2021

Notes Us$ Us$
Income
Net gloss)/galn on financial instruments at fair value through 13 (1,824,278) 2,617,822
profit or loss
Total (expense)/income (1,824,278) 2,617,822
Expenses
Investment Manager fees 10 207,774 220,866
Distributor and Agent Security fees 10 184,701 196,325
Administration fees 10 25,366 26,995
Depositary fees 10 16,146 17,178
Sub-Custodian fees 10 82,834 67,211
Audit fees 31,175 29,819
Other fees and expenses 175,886 142,196
Total expenses 723,882 700,590
Withholding taxes 2 (67,932) (68,170)
Total comprehensive (loss)/gain for year (2,616,092) 1,849,062

Gains and losses arose solely from continuing operations.

There are no recognised gains and losses other than those shown in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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New Major Economies Fund
Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 15% January 2022

Unit Capital Unit Premium Egtﬁgﬂgg Total Equity

US$ Uss US$ Uss

At 16th January 2021 20,933,900 (95,365,796) 100,438,959 26,007,063
Total comprehensive loss for year - - (2,616,092) (2,616,092)
Proceeds from equity units issued 24,800 5,342 - 30,142
Payments for equity Units redeemed (3,309,000) (669,061) - (3,978,061)
At 15th January 2022 17,649,700 (96,029,515) 97,822,867 19,443,052
At 16th January 2020 24,576,000 (94,941,291) 100,683,287 30,317,996
Total comprehensive gain for year - - 1,849,062 1,849,062
Distribution (Note 12) - - (2,093,390) (2,093,390)
Proceeds from equity Units issued 113,700 1,317 - 115,017
Payments for equity Units redeemed (3,755,800) (425,822) - (4,181,622)
At 15t January 2021 20,933,900 (95,365,796) 100,438,959 26,007,063

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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DAIWA EQUITY FUND SERIES
Notes to the Financial Statements
15t January 2022

GENERAL INFORMATION

Daiwa Equity Fund Series (the“ Fund” ) was constituted on 4t June 2004 as an open-ended
umbrella unit trust authorised by the Central Bank of Ireland (the" Central Bank” ) pursuant
to the provisions of the Unit Trusts Act, 1990. The Fund was approved by the Central Bank as
a Retail Investor Alternative Investment Fund on 8t October 2015.

The Trust Deed constitutes the Fund, which since 15t July 2013 is comprised of one sub-fund,
namely, New Major Economies Fund (the“ Sub-Fund” ). The Sub-Fund commenced operations on 16th
July 2004. The proceeds from the issue of Units in the Sub-Fund are applied in the records
and accounts of the Fund for the Sub-Fund and the assets and liabilities and income and
expenditure attributable thereto are applied to the Sub-Fund subject to the provisions of the
Trust Deed. Monies subscribed for the Sub-Fund must be in its denominated currency, US Dollar
(“ US$" ). These financial statements relate solely to the Sub-Fund.

The investment objective of the Sub-Fund is to provide unitholders with capital appreciation
by investing in a selection of diversified and potential high growth stock markets namely
Brazil, Russia, Eastern Europe, India and Greater China.

The Alternative Investment Fund Manager of the Fund is SMT Fund Services (lreland) Limited
(the* AIFM" ).

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies adopted by the Sub-Fund are as follows:

Basis of Preparation

The financial statements of the Fund have been prepared in accordance with the historical
cost convention, as adjusted for the revaluation of financial instruments held at fair value
through profit or loss and in compliance with Accounting Standards issued by the Financial
Reporting Council, including Financial Reporting Standard 102, “ The Financial Reporting

Standard applicable in the United Kingdom and the Republic of Ireland” (* FRS 102" ).

The financial statements for the current year have been prepared up to the valuation point of
14th January 2022 which is 11.00 am (Dublin Time) as detailed in the Prospectus.

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis of accounting.
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DAIWA EQUITY FUND SERIES
Notes to the Financial Statements
15t January 2022
(Continued)

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Basis of Preparation (continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with FRS 102 requires management to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions that effect the application of policies and the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and income and expenses. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of
making judgements about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates. The estimates
and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are summarised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Investments
This category has two sub-categories; financial assets and liabilities held for trading, and
those designated by management at fair value through profit or loss at inception.

Financial assets held for trading (“ trading securities” ) are securities that are acquired
for generating a profit from short-term fluctuations in price or dealer®s margin or are
included in a portfolio in which a pattern of short-term profit taking exists. The Sub-Fund
held Equities and Participatory Notes as at 15t™ January 2022 and 2021, both of which are held
for trading.

Securities listed on a stock exchange or traded on a regulated market are valued at their
fair value based on quoted prices. Securities which are not freely transferable, or which are
not regularly traded, or which for any other reason are subject to limited marketability, are
valued at fair value determined by the AIFM.

As at 15t January 2022, the securities described above were comprised of Jiangsu Hengrui
Medicine ML CW 29-Jul-22, Merrill Lynch Kweichow Moutai Co CW 28-Nov-22, UBS AG London
Kweichow Moutai Co CW 14-Feb-23, UBS AG London Longi Green Energy CW 08-Dec-22, and UBS AG
London Ping An Bank Co Ltd CW 08-Jun-22. As at 15t January 2021, the securities described
above were comprised of Jiangsu Hengrui Medicine ML CW 09-Aug-21, Merrill Lynch Gree Electric
CW 05-Jul-21, Merrill Lynch Kweichow Moutai Co CW 13-Dec-21 and UBS Kweichow Moutai Co CW 08-
Feb-22. Further details can be seen in the Schedule of Investments on pages 33 and 34.
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DAIWA EQUITY FUND SERIES
Notes to the Financial Statements
15t January 2022
(Continued)

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments (continued)

The Sub-Fund®s trading securities are accounted for on the trade date and are acquired at
fair value at time of acquisition and transaction costs are expensed as incurred and included
in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. Gains and losses on trading securities are
calculated on a* first in first out” basis, include related transaction charges and are
included in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. Fair value estimates are made at a
specific point in time, based on market conditions and information about the financial
instrument. These estimates are subjective in nature, involve uncertainties and matters of
significant judgement, and therefore cannot be determined with precision. Changes in
assumptions could significantly affect the estimates.

Under FRS 102, Fair Value Measurement, the Fund uses the recognition and measurement
provisions of International Accounting Standard 39, Financial Instruments”

Foreign Currencies

Assets and liabilities of the Sub-Fund denominated in foreign currencies are measured using
the currency (the* functional currency” ) of the primary economic environment in which the
Sub-Fund operates, this is the US$. Securities transactions are recorded in the financial
statements on the trade date of the transaction and translated into US$ at the exchange rate
prevailing at the close of business on the trade date.

Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into US$ at the
exchange rates ruling at the year end. Foreign currency gains or losses arising from trading
activities are included in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Functional and Presentation Currency

Items included in the Sub-Fund®"s financial statements are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which it operates (the* functional currency” ), this is the
US$, as all Units are issued and redeemed in US$, which is also the Sub-Fund"s presentation
currency.
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DAIWA EQUITY FUND SERIES
Notes to the Financial Statements
15t January 2022
(Continued)

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income

Dividend income is recorded gross of any non-reclaimable withholding taxes suffered on an ex-
date basis. Interest income is accounted for on an effective interest basis gross of any non-
reclaimable withholding taxes. Discounts and premiums on securities are amortised and
accreted rateably over the life of the respective securities. These are presented as part of
net (loss)/gain on Ffinancial instruments at fair value through profit or loss in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Expenses
Expenses are accounted for on an accruals basis.

Participating Units

The Sub-Fund issues equity Units, which are redeemable at the unitholder®s option and are
classified as equity in accordance with FRS 102 Section 22. The Net Asset Value (“ NAV” ) per
unit is calculated by dividing the total Net Assets of the Sub-Fund by the number of Units in
issue. All Units are issued and redeemed at this price.

Should the equity Units® terms or conditions change such that they do not comply with the
strict criteria of FRS 102 Section 22, the equity Units would be reclassified to a financial
liability from the date the instrument ceases to meet the criteria. The financial liability
would be measured at the instrument"s fair value at the date of reclassification. Any
difference between the carrying value of the equity instrument and fair value of the
liability on the date of reclassification would be recognised in equity. Equity Units can be
put back to the Sub-Fund at any time for cash equal to a proportionate share of the Sub-
Fund"s trading NAV calculated in accordance with the Fund"s regulations.

Distributions

The AIFM"s intention is to declare distributions annually, in accordance with the provisions
of the Prospectus, out of all net interest, dividends and other income received by the Sub-
Fund subject to such adjustments as may be appropriate pursuant to the provisions of the
Trust Deed. The AIFM may also distribute to the unitholders annually or at such other times
as it may determine the realised and unrealised capital gains less realised and unrealised
capital losses of the Sub-Fund. All income and net capital gain of the Sub-Fund which are not
distributed shall be invested pursuant to the Sub-Fund®s investment policy.
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DAIWA EQUITY FUND SERIES
Notes to the Financial Statements
15t January 2022
(Continued)

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Distributions (continued)

Distributions will be declared as at the accounting date (the* distribution date” ) and will
be paid on the second business day immediately following the distribution date to the
Distributor in respect of units distributed in Japan. Distributions will be made to
unitholders entered on the register at the close of business on the business day preceding
the distribution date. In Japan, if the holding of units is entrusted to the Distributor,
dividends will be paid to Japanese unitholders by the Distributor on the date designated by
the Distributor after its receipt. Please refer to Note 12 for further details.

Cash Flow Statement
The Fund has availed of the exemption available to open ended investment funds under FRS 102
Section 7.1A not to prepare a cash flow statement.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise balances held with Brown Brothers Harriman & Co. (* BBH" )
in its capacity as sub-custodian.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

2022 2021
US$ uss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Held for trading:
- Equities 17,348,576 24,321,326
- Participatory Notes 1,341,695 2,340,615

18,690,271 26,661,941
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DAIWA EQUITY FUND SERIES

15t January 2022
(Continued)

4. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The table below shows financial instruments recognised at fair value, analysed between those

whose fair value is based on:

quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1);

those involving inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly (as prices) or indirectly (derived from

prices) (Level 2); and

those with inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market
data (unobservable inputs) (Level 3).

2022

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Financial assets held for trading
Equities

Participatory Notes

2021

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Financial assets held for trading
Equities

Participatory Notes

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Uss$ Uss$ Uss$ Uss$
17,348,576 - - 17,348,576
- 1,341,695 - 1,341,695
17,348,576 1,341,695 - 18,690,271
24,321,326 - - 24,321,326
- 2,340,615 - 2,340,615
24,321,326 2,340,615 - 26,661,941
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DAIWA EQUITY FUND SERIES
Notes to the Financial Statements
15t January 2022
(Continued)

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

When fair values of listed equities at the reporting date are based on quoted market prices
or binding dealer price quotations (bid price for long positions), without any deduction for
transaction costs, the instruments are included within Level 1 of the hierarchy. When the
Sub-Fund has assets and liabilities with offsetting market risks, it uses mid-market prices
as a basis for establishing fair values for the offsetting risk positions and applies the bid
or ask price to the net open position as appropriate.

Securities which are not freely transferable, or which are not regularly traded, or which for
any other reason are subject to limited marketability, are valued at fair value. As at 15th
January 2022, the total value of securities valued as described above, amounted to
US$1,341,695 (2021: US$2,340,615). For these financial instruments, values are based on the
underlying securities” quoted market prices and are therefore included within Level 2.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Prospectus of the Fund sets out a comprehensive disclosure of the risks that the Fund
faces and readers of these financial statements should therefore refer to the Prospectus to
ensure they have a full understanding of these risks. Purely for the purposes of these
financial statements and to facilitate compliance with accounting standards, the main risks
arising from the Fund®s investment strategies and measures thereof can be summarised as
follows:

Market Price Risk

Market price risk arises from uncertainty about future prices of financial instruments held.
It represents the potential loss the Sub-Fund might suffer through holding market positions
in the face of price movements. The Investment Manager employs a multi-layer approach to risk
management. The Schedule of Investments on pages 33 and 34 contains an analysis of the
portfolio by type of instrument and by geographical sector.

If the official stock markets on which the units held by the Sub-Fund had increased by 5%
(2021: 5%) and the price of each Equity investment and Participatory Note had increased by
5%, whilst the foreign currency rates held constant, there would have been the following
approximate increase in Net Assets attributable to Holders of equity Units:
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DAIWA EQUITY FUND SERIES
Notes to the Financial Statements
15t January 2022
(Continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Market Price Risk (continued)
15t January 2022: US$934,514 (4.81%) 15t January 2021: US$1,333,097 (5.13%)

A decrease by 5% (2021: 5%) would result in an equal but opposite effect on Net Assets
attributable to Holders of equity Units to the figures shown above, on the basis that all
other variables remain constant.

The above calculations are based on adjusting the fair value of listed equities as at 15th
January 2022 and 2021. The Investment Manager considers a 5% movement as an assumption for
the above analysis due to the investment security types held by the Sub-Fund. This represents
the Investment Manager®s view of a reasonable assumptive movement for a 12 month period based
on current market conditions.

Limitations of Sensitivity Analysis

- The analysis is based on historical data and does not account for the fact that future
market price movements, correlations between markets and levels of market liquidity in
conditions of market stress may bear no relation to historical patterns.

- The market price risk information is a relative estimate of risk rather than a precise and
accurate number.

- The market price risk information represents a hypothetical outcome and is not intended to
be predictive.

- Future market conditions could vary significantly from those experienced in the past.

During the year, a viral Covid-19 pandemic has continued to spread across the globe. It is
causing very significant financial market, economic and social dislocation globally,
including very significant disruption to business and economic activity. The economic
disruption may significantly reduce the value of many financial instruments including those
held by the Sub-Fund. The ultimate extent of the effect of this on the Sub-Fund is not
possible to estimate at this time and will only be finally determined on realisation of
investments.
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DAIWA EQUITY FUND SERIES
Notes to the Financial Statements
15t January 2022
(Continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk represents the potential losses that the Sub-Fund might suffer due to
adverse movements in relevant interest rates. The financial instruments of the Sub-Fund are
not exposed directly to interest rate risk. The majority of the cash balances held by the
Sub-Fund bear interest at a floating rate. The Investment Manager considers the interest rate
risk to be minimal.

Currency Risk

The Sub-Fund holds assets denominated in currencies other than the US$, the functional
currency. It is therefore exposed to currency risk, as the value of the securities
denominated in other currencies will fluctuate due to changes in exchange rates. The Sub-
Fund®s policy is not to enter into any currency hedging transactions.

Currency risks in emerging markets are correlated with sovereign risks, such that episodes of
currency trauma coincide with perceptions of political and financial sector vulnerability, as
well as the ability to meet external debt obligations. The Investment Manager assumes the
full currency risk in the equity portfolios and attempts to control for major event risks,
but not to systematically hedge currency. The Investment Manager states that to do so is
impractical because of the undeveloped state of local interest rate markets especially at the
long end of the yield curve, the existence of residual capital controls, the relatively high
foreign currency trading cost and limited market liquidity.

A substantial portion of the Sub-Fund®s assets are invested in currencies other than US$ and
any income received by the Sub-Fund from these investments will be received in those

currencies, some of which may fall in value against the US$. The Sub-Fund calculates its NAV
in US$, and there is therefore a currency exchange risk, which may affect the value of Units.

104/239



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

DAIWA EQUITY FUND SERIES
Notes to the Financial Statements
15t January 2022
(Continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Currency Risk (continued)
The currency exposure of the Sub-Fund®s investments and cash are set out as follows:

2022 2022 2021 2021

Non-Monetary Monetary Non-Monetary Monetary

Uss Us$ uss$ uss$

Brazilian Real 2,489,512 - 3,190,059 -
Euro - 11,604 - 2,236
Hong Kong Dollar 3,278,071 374 5,449,645 151
Pound Sterling - 73 - 72
Russian Ruble - 71,976 - -
Taiwan Dollar 2,298,939 13,564 2,577,456 213,166
8,066,522 97,591 11,217,160 215,625

At the year end, had the US$ weakened by 5% in relation to the above currencies, total equity
and the comprehensive income for the year per the Statement of Comprehensive Income would
have changed by the amounts:

2022 2022 2021 2021

Non-Monetary Monetary Non-Monetary Monetary

uss us$ Us$ us$

Brazilian Real 124,476 - 159,503 -
Euro - 580 - 112
Hong Kong Dollar 163,903 19 272,482 7
Pound Sterling - 4 - 4
Russian Ruble - 3,599 - -
Taiwan Dollar 114,947 678 128,873 10,658
403,326 4,880 560,858 10,781
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DAIWA EQUITY FUND SERIES
Notes to the Financial Statements
15t January 2022
(Continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or counterparty will be unable or unwilling to meet a
commitment that it has entered into and cause the Sub-Fund to incur financial losses. The
Sub-Fund is exposed to credit risk on parties with whom it trades and will also bear the risk
of settlement default.

SMT Trustees (lreland) Limited as Depositary has appointed Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank,
Limited (London Branch) as its custodian. Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank, Limited (London Branch)
have, in turn, appointed BBH as their sub-custodian. Both the cash and securities are
ultimately held at BBH with cash being held at BBH as banker. The Sub-Fund has elected to
enter into a BBH sweep programme, which means that BBH will sweep cash into overnight
eligible bank counterparty accounts in order to diversify overnight exposure and/or to gain
interest on the various accounts. The Sub-Fund acknowledges that participation in cash
management service involves investment risks (such as the loss of any balances swept) and it
also accepts the sovereign and counterparty risks associated with offshore overnight time
deposits. BBH has a Fitch credit rating of A+ (2021: A+).

Impairment provisions are provided for losses that have been incurred by the year end date,
if any. The Sub-Fund may not hold more than 10% of any class of security issued by any single
issuer. The Sub-Fund invests in financial assets, which have an investment grade as rated by
a well-known rating agency. For unrated assets, a rating is assigned using an approach that
is consistent with rating agencies.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk represents the possibility that the Sub-Fund may not be able to rapidly adjust
the size of its investment position in times of high volatility and financial stress at a
reasonable price in order to meet its liabilities.

The main liability of the Sub-Fund is the redemption of any Units that investors may wish to

sell. Units can be redeemed on any dealing day that the redemption request is received and
accepted by the AIFM.
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DAIWA EQUITY FUND SERIES
Notes to the Financial Statements
15t January 2022
(Continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Liquidity Risk (continued)

Redemption Procedure: If the number of Units of the Sub-Fund falling to be repurchased on any
dealing day is equal to one tenth or more of the total number of Units of the Sub-Fund in
issue or deemed to be in issue on such dealing day, then the AIFM may in its discretion
refuse to repurchase any Units in the Sub-Fund in excess of one tenth of the total number of
Units of the Sub-Fund in issue or deemed to be in issue. If the AIFM so refuses, the requests
for repurchase of Units in the Sub-Fund on such dealing day will be reduced rateably and the
Units in the Sub-Fund to which each request relates which are not repurchased by reason of
such refusal shall be treated as if a request for repurchase had been made in respect of each
subsequent dealing day until all the Units in the Sub-Fund to which the original request
related have been repurchased. Requests for repurchase which have been carried forward from
an earlier dealing day shall (subject always to the foregoing limits) be complied with in
priority to later requests.

Temporary suspension of calculation of NAV and issue and repurchase of Units: The AIFM may
temporarily suspend, upon prior notification to the Depositary, the calculation of the NAV of
the Sub-Fund, the NAV per Unit of the Sub-Fund and the issue and repurchase of Units to and
from unitholders as detailed within the Prospectus.

The Investment Manager typically determines the liquidity of an emerging market by assessing
the average daily trading volume over the last three months. The Investment Manager also
applies their theory that market liquidity is usually available in rising markets and lacking
in declining ones. Liquidity considerations are one factor in determining the constituents of
their portfolio, this affords the Investment Manager the flexibility in making changes to
country or security weights as conditions warrant. The Investment Manager®s emerging markets
traders implement portfolio changes in a manner that minimises market impact, this
minimisation of market impact is a key consideration. Expected annual turnover is 50%.
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DAIWA EQUITY FUND SERIES
Notes to the Financial Statements
15t January 2022
(Continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Liquidity Risk (continued)

The table below and overleaf analyses for the Sub-Fund the financial liabilities and net
settled derivatives into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the
year end date to the contractual maturity date:

Less than 1 month Total
2022 Uss$ Uss$
Liabilities
Total equity 19,443,052 19,443,052
Creditors 269,731 269,731
Total Liabilities 19,712,783 19,712,783
2021
Liabilities
Total equity 26,007,063 26,007,063
Creditors 2,619,607 2,619,607
Total Liabilities 28,626,670 28,626,670

CASH AT BANK

Cash at bank is held with BBH who retains a security interest over the assets of the Sub-
Fund, up to the value of any advances or borrowings.

DEBTORS
2022 2021
us$ Uss
Interest receivable 2 3
Dividends receivable 25,206 4,065
Receivable for investments sold 113,933 1,302,748
139,141 1,306,816
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DAIWA EQUITY FUND SERIES
Notes to the Financial Statements
15t January 2022

(Continued)
CREDITORS
2022 2021
Us$ us$
Interest payable 4 1
Payable for fund Units repurchased 110,372 377,939
Distribution payable - 2,093,390
Fees payable (Note 10) 159,355 148,277
269,731 2,619,607
UNITS ISSUED AND REDEEMED DURING THE YEAR
2022 2021
Number of Units outstanding at start of year 2,093,390 2,457,600
Number of Units issued 2,480 11,370
Number of Units redeemed (330,900) (375,580)
Number of Units outstanding at end of year 1,764,970 2,093,390

FEES AND EXPENSES

The Sub-Fund pays to the AIFM a monthly fee, accrued daily and payable monthly in arrears, at
an annual rate of 1.88% of the NAV of the Sub-Fund (plus VAT, if any). The AIFM pays each
relevant party"s fees out of its fee.

The AIFM is entitled to be repaid all of its administration expenses out of the assets of the
Sub-Fund, which shall include legal fees, courier®s fees, reasonable out-of-pocket expenses
of the Investment Manager and telecommunication costs and expenses. Unitholders are advised
that the total of all such expenses, which are charged at normal commercial rates, may
constitute a significant charge to the Sub-Fund.

The Sub-Fund pays to the Depositary, out of the AIFM"s fee, a fee accrued daily and payable
monthly, at an annual rate of 0.07% of the NAV of the Sub-Fund. The Depositary is entitled to
be repaid out of the assets of the Sub-Fund all of its reasonable out-of-pocket expenses,
including the costs of the sub-custodian.

The Sub-Fund pays to the Investment Manager, out of the AIFM"s fee, a fee accrued daily and
payable monthly, at an annual rate of 0.90% of the NAV of the Sub-Fund.
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DAIWA EQUITY FUND SERIES
Notes to the Financial Statements
15t January 2022
(Continued)

FEES AND EXPENSES (continued)

The Sub-Fund pays to the Distributor, out of the AIFM"s fee, a fee accrued daily and payable
monthly, at an annual rate of 0.70% of the NAV of the Sub-Fund.

The Sub-Fund pays to the Agent Company out of the AIFM*s fee, a fee accrued daily and payable
monthly, at an annual rate of 0.10% of the NAV of the Sub-Fund.

The fees payable are as follows:

2022 2021

us$ uss

Investment Manager fees 22,379 31,073
Distributor and Agent Security fees 19,893 27,608
Administration fees 2,735 3,827
Depositary fees 1,741 2,432
Sub-Custodian fees 33,403 10,174
Audit fees 28,992 28,981
Other fees and expenses 50,212 44,182
159,355 148,277

RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The AIFM, Depositary, Investment Manager, Distributor/Agent Company and the sole unitholder
are deemed to be related parties under FRS 102. Fees incurred with related parties during the
year are disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and amounts payable to related
parties at the year end are disclosed in Note 10. Daiwa Securities Co Limited, the Sub-Fund®s
Distributor in Japan, is the sole unitholder as at 15th January 2022 and 2021.

In accordance with the requirements of the Central Bank AIF Rulebook, all transactions
carried out with the Fund by the AIFM, Depositary and Investment Manager or by delegates or
group companies (“ connected parties” ) must be carried out as if negotiated at arm"s length
and be in the best interests of unitholders. The AIFM is satisfied that there are
arrangements in place (evidenced by written procedures) to ensure that the obligations set
out above are applied to all transactions with connected parties and transactions with
connected parties entered into during the year complied with the obligations.
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DAIWA EQUITY FUND SERIES
Notes to the Financial Statements
15t January 2022
(Continued)

DIVIDENDS

The AIFM is entitled to declare a dividend out of all net interest, dividends and other
income received by the Sub-Fund. The AIFM did not declare a dividend for the year ended 15t
January 2022. The AIFM declared a dividend of US$2,093,390 (US$2,093,390 at US$1.00 per unit)

on 15t January 2021, which was paid on 20t January 2021.

NET (LOSS)/GAIN ON FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

2022 2021
uss uss

Net realised gain from:
- Investments in securities and currencies 3,611,914 5,014,274
- Forward foreign currency contracts 168 33
3,612,082 5,014,307

Net realised loss from:
- Investments in securities and currencies (766,765) (2,729,933)
- Forward foreign currency contracts (379) (126)
(767,144) (2,730,059)

Net change in unrealised loss from:

- Investments in securities and currencies (5,426,193) (268,853)
Dividends on investments 756,951 601,660
Coupon on debt securities and interest 26 767
Net (loss)/gain on financial instruments at fair value (1,824,278) 2,617,822

through profit or loss
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DAIWA EQUITY FUND SERIES
Notes to the Financial Statements
15t January 2022

(Continued)

NAV HISTORY

2022 2021 2020
Dealing NAV (US$) 19,443,052 26,219,726 30,350,080
Trade Date Adjustment (US$) - - (32,084)
Pricing Adjustment (US$) - (212,663) -
NAV per financial statements (US$) 19,443,052 26,007,063 30,317,996
Number of Units 1,764,970 2,093,390 2,457,600
Dealing NAV per Unit (US$) 11.02 12.53 12.34

TAXATION

Under current law and practice the Fund qualifies as an investment undertaking as defined in
Section 739B of the Taxes Consolidation Act, 1997, as amended. On that basis, it is not
chargeable to Irish tax on its income or gains.

The Fund will be regarded as resident in Ireland for tax purposes if the Depositary is
resident in lreland or a majority of the trustees (if more than one) are resident in Ireland.
It is the intention of the Manager that the business of the Fund will be conducted in such a
manner as to ensure that it is Irish resident for tax purposes.

Irish tax may arise on the happening of a“ chargeable event” . A chargeable event includes
any distribution payments to unitholders or any encashment, redemption, cancellation,
transfer or the holding of Units at the end of each eight year period beginning with the
acquisition of such Units.

No Irish tax will arise on the Fund in respect of chargeable events in respect of:

(a) a unitholder who is neither Irish resident nor ordinarily resident in Ireland for tax
purposes, at the time of the chargeable event, provided appropriate valid declarations in
accordance with the provisions of the Taxes Consolidation Act, 1997, as amended, are held by
the Fund or where the Fund has been authorised by Irish Revenue to make gross payments in the
absence of appropriate declarations; and

(b) certain exempted Irish tax resident unitholders who have provided the Fund with the
necessary signed statutory declarations.
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15t January 2022
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TAXATION (continued)
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Dividends, interest and capital gains (if any) received on investments made by the Fund may
be subject to taxes imposed by the country from which the investment income/gains are
received and such taxes may not be recoverable by the Fund or its unitholders.

EXCHANGE RATES USED IN THIS REPORT

The following exchange rates were used to translate assets and liabilities into one US$:

2022
Brazilian Real 5.5289
Euro 0.8729
Hong Kong Dollar 7.7842
Pound Sterling 0.7283
Russian Ruble 76.2801
Taiwan Dollar 27.6030

SOFT COMMISSION ARRANGEMENTS

The Sub-Fund does not have any soft commission arrangements.

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS DURING THE YEAR

2021

5.1971

0.8246

7.7542

0.7323

28.0070

An addendum to the Sub-Fund"s prospectus dated 8t March 2021 was noted by the Central Bank to
reflect the introduction of the Taxonomy Regulation in the European Union (* EU” ).

For the purpose of the Taxonomy Regulation, it should be noted that the investments
underlying this financial product does not take into account the EU criteria for

environmentally sustainable economic activities.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent to the year end and up to 10t May 2022, there were US$19,191 subscriptions into

the Sub-Fund and US$1,620,687 redemptions from the Sub-Fund.
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DAIWA EQUITY FUND SERIES
Notes to the Financial Statements
15t January 2022
(Continued)

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS (continued)

As at the date the financial statements were available to be issued, uncertainty still
remains around the length of the disruption of Covid-19 and the impact on global markets.

In September 2021, BBH announced that they have entered into an agreement with State Street
Corporation (“"State Street™) under which State Street will acquire BBH Investor Services
business; which includes its custody, fund accounting and administration, transfer agency,
depositary, foreign exchange and securities lending services. The transaction is expected to
be completed in 2022, subject to customary closing conditions and regulatory approvals.

On 24th February 2022, Russia launched a military invasion into Ukraine. Russia's invasion of
Ukraine carries significant risks for a world economy that has yet to fully recover from the
impacts of the global Covid-19 pandemic. The impact on the Sub-Fund of the consequential geo-
political instability, financial market volatility, inflation and imposition of sanctions on
Russia are not possible to forecast at this time. As at 15t January 2022, the Sub-Fund held
Equities in the Netherlands which were exposed to the Russian Market and Russian Federation
and amounted to 16.08% of the NAV. Following discussions with the Investment Manager and the
Depositary, on 4t March 2022 the AIFM instructed that the Russian equities held by the Sub-
Fund be valued at a zero market value until further notice.

There were no other events subsequent to the year end up to the date of approving the
financial statements on 10th May 2022, which require disclosure in the financial statements.

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors of the AIFM approved the financial statements on 10t May 2022.
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DAIWA EQUITY FUND SERIES

NEW MAJOR ECONOMIES FUND

Schedule of Investments
15th January 2022

.- minal Fair % of
Equities mgldiﬁg Va&gg NAV
Brazil (2021: 17.20%)

Banco Bradesco SA ADR 104,400 386,280 1.99
Hapvida Participacoes INV SA 70,000 128,760 0.66
Itau Unibanco Holdings ADR 86,800 367,164 1.89
Lojas Renner Sa 58,850 263,547 1.36
Magazine Luiza Sa 62,000 68,292 0.35
Petroleo Brasileiro PRF 150,778 826,853 4.25
Rumo SA 42,400 124,695 0.64
Suzano SA 34,500 390,184 2.01
Vale SA 45,123 687,181 3.53
3,242,956 16.68
Cayman Islands (2021: 16.34%)
Bilibili Inc Class Z 3,180 121,575 0.63
China Mengniu Dairy Co 56,000 340,638 1.75
Country Garden SVCS Holdings Co Ltd 43,000 239,742 1.23
Meituan Class B 19,100 541,283 2.78
Tencent Holdings Ltd 10,600 644,643 3.32
XP Inc Class A USD 6,654 195,029 1.00
2,082,910 10.71
China (2021: 6.66%)
China Merchants Bank - H 48,000 381,696 1.96
Haier Smart Home Co Ltd - H 55,442 226,847 1.17
Ping An Insurance - H 54,000 425,592 2.19
1,034,135 5.32
Cyprus (2021: 0.00%)
0zon Holdings Plc 4,400 106,920 0.55
TCS Group Holdings Plc 9,937 697,379 3.59
804,299 4.14
Hong Kong (2021: 4.80%)
AIA Group Ltd 32,800 356,054 1.83
356,054 1.83
India (2021: 20.20%)
Axis Bank 6,567 324,410 1.67
HDFC Bank Ltd 18,050 1,271,081 6.53
Infosys Ltd 72,292 1,850,675 9.52
Reliance Industries 11,892 818,170 4.21

4,264,336 21.93
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DAIWA EQUITY FUND SERIES

NEW MAJOR ECONOMIES FUND

Schedule of Investments
15th January 2022

(Continued)

. . Nominal
Equities (continued) Holdiing
Netherlands (2021: 0.00%)

Yandex N.V. Class A 6,190
Russian Federation (2021: 18.41%)
MMC Norilsk Nickel PJSC 12,408
Oil Company Lukoil PJSC E/C 1,376
0il Company Lukoil PJSC US 7,335
Rosneft Oil Co 98,872
Sberbank of Russia PJSC 300,688
Taiwan Province of China (2021: 9.91%)
Mediatek Inc 17,000
Nanya Technology Corporation 122,000
Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing TWD 54,000
Total Equities (2021: 93.52%)
Participatory Notes
Curacao (2021: 8.13%)
Jiangsu Hengrui Medicine ML CW 29-Jul-22 33,600
Merrill Lynch Kweichow Moutai Co Ltd CW 28-

1,206
Nov-22
Switzerland (2021: 0.87%)
UBS AG London Kweichow Moutai Co CW 14-Feb-
23 1,000
ggs AG London Longi Green Energy CW 08-Dec- 20,297
UBS AG London Ping An Bank Co Ltd CW 08-Jun- 75.500

22

Total Participatory Notes (2021: 9.00%)
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Fair

% of

Value
Uss$ NAV
337,417 1.74
337,417 1.74
369,634 1.90
119,052 0.61
640,345 3.29
771,202 3.97
1,027,297 5.29
2,927,530 15.06
655,907 3.37
328,392 1.69
1,314,640 6.76
2,298,939 11.82
17,348,576 89.23
247,393 1.27
354,706 1.83
602,099 3.10
293,531 1.51
252,030 1.29
194,035 1.00
739,596 3.80
1,341,695 6.90
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DAIWA EQUITY FUND SERIES
NEW MAJOR ECONOMIES FUND
Schedule of Portfolio Movements (Unaudited)
15th January 2022

Acquisition Quantity Disposal Quantity
AIA Group Ltd - 34,000
Alibaba Group Holding Ltd - 41,900
Anhui Conch Cement - H - 57,000
Bilibili Inc Class Z 3,660 -
China Mengniu Dairy Co 58,000 -
Country Garden SVCS Holdings Co Ltd 43,000 -
Galaxy Entertainment Group - 47,000
Hapvida Participacoes INV SA 79,000 -
HDFC Bank Ltd - 5,515
Infosys Ltd - 55,508
Jiangsu Hengrui Medicine ML CW 09-Aug-21 - 39,500
Jiangsu Hengrui Medicine ML CW 29-Jul-22 37,200 -
Kweichow Moutai Co Ltd CW 28-Nov-22 1,206 -
Lojas Renner SA 68,450 -
Magazine Luiza Sa 62,000 -
Meituan Class B 22,400 -
Merrill Lynch Gree Electric CW 05-Jul-21 - 49,300
Merrill Lynch Gree Electric CW 16-Jun-22 45,300 45,300
Merrill Lynch Kweichow Moutai Co Ltd CW 13-
Dec-21 - 3,306
MMC Norilsk Nickel PJSC 14,655 -
Mobile Telesystems PJSC - 57,200
New Oriental ED & Technology GP Inc - 24,260
Oil Company Lukoil PJSC US - 5,579
0zon Holdings Plc 5,000 -
Reliance Industries 3,340 -
Rosneft Oil Co - 76,703
Sberbank of Russia PJSC - 131,312
Suzano SA 41,300 -
Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing TWD - 26,000
Tal Education Group CL A USD - 11,500
TCS Group Holdings Plc 11,994 -
Tencent Holdings Ltd - 11,800
UBS AG London Kweichow Moutai Co CW 14-Feb-
23 1,000 -
ggs AG London Longi Green Energy CW 08-Dec- 20,297 _
UBS AG London Ping An Bank Co Ltd CW 08-Jun- 84,300 _

22

117/239



EDINETOOOO

1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

DAIWA EQUITY FUND SERIES
NEW MAJOR ECONOMIES FUND
Schedule of Portfolio Movements (Unaudited)
15th January 2022

(Continued)
Acquisition Quantity Disposal Quantity
UBS Kweichow Moutai Co CW 08-Feb-22 - 1,000
XP Inc Class A USD 7,380 -
Yandex N.V. Class A 7,500 -
YDUQS Participacoes SA - 45,500

This schedule shows 20 largest acquisitions and disposals in the year as required by the Central
Bank. It is not intended to provide a reconciliation between holdings at the beginning of the
year and holdings at the end of the year.
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2022
( ) ( )
12,310,749.88 1,586,363
162,346.85 20,920
12,148,403.03 1,565,443
1,596,374
7.61 981
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2022
2,412,391,044.57 119,923,032,552 1,823,853,466.84

2,288,146,772.21

124,244,272 .36

119,923,032,552

1,823,853,466.84
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2021 2020 30
( ) « ) ( ) « )
4,845,121 658,113 3,808,308 517,282
682,948 92,765 624,106 84,772
5,528,069 750,878 4,432,414 602,055
11,460,782 1,556,718 7,087,874 962,746
31,835,678 4,324,240 29,278,295 3,976,871
43,296,460 5,880,958 36,366,169 4,939,617
(5.638,212) (765,838) (5.889,429) (799,961)
37,658,248 5,115,120 30,476,740 4,139,656
43,186,317 5,865,997 34,909, 154 4,741,710
62,992,338 8,556,249 62,992,338 8,556,249
4,050,000 550,112 4,050,000 550,112
(112,583) (15,292) 118,389 16,081
(23,743,438) (3,225,071) (32,251,573) (4,380,731)
43,186,317 5,865,997 34,909,154 4,741,710
2022 24
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2021 30 2020 30
( ) « ) ( ) « )
34,627,650 4,703,474 30,796,780 4,183,127
(29,221,929) (3,969,215) (28,671,314) (3,894,425)
5,405,721 734,259 2,125,466 288,702
(82,816) (11,249) (32,172) (4,370)
5,322,905 723,010 2,093,294 284,332
3,185,230 432,650 2,437 331
8,508,135 1,155,660 2,095,731 284,663
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2021 30 2020 30
8,508,135 1,155,660 2,095,731 284,663
18 (263,968) (35,855) 409,118 55,570
32,996 4,482 (51,140) (6,946)
(230,972) (31,373) 357,978 48,624
8,277,163 1,124,287 2,453,709 333,287
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62,992,338 4,050,000 118,389  (32,251,573) 34,909,154
8,508,135 8,508,135

(230,972) (230,972)

(230,972) 8,508,135 8,277,163

62,992,338 4,050,000 (112,583)  (23,743,438) 43,186,317
62,992,338 4,050,000 (239,589)  (34,347,304) 32,455,445
2,095,731 2,095,731

357,978 357,978

357,978 2,005,731 2,453,709

62,992,338 4,050,000 118,389  (32,251,573) 34,909,154
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2021 30

102

102
102 26
2014 39 102 11
102 12

102 102
2014
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405
2013 2013
2016 25
3,400 3,400
2021 30 2020 30
18,988,007 18,197,043
10,233,922 10,474,271
29,221,929 28,671,314
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(a

(b

2021 30 2020 30
14,362,213 13,270,915
1,513,570 1,472,961
947,617 886,575
2,164,607 2,566,592
18,988,007 18,197,043
217 2020 215
SMTTIL

2021 30 2020 30
94,000 106,000
759,276 790,276
48,016 43,849
23,000 23,000
12,550 6,050
81,750 81,773
352,275 322,438
525,530 577,613
1,051,431 1,143,479
55,953 69,231

2021 30 2020 30
3,052 3,224
(3,188,282) (5,661)
(3,185,230) (2,437)

2021 30 2020 30
(32,996) 51,140

133/239




EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2021 30 2020 30
5,322,905 2,003,294
12.5 2020
s 665,363 261,661
(145,699) (114,536)
301 627
1,526 7,246
(534,721) (157,435)
(3.,172,000)

(3,185,230) (2,437)
75,146 71,592

2021 30
2020 30 11,147,818 11,147,818
1,562,343 1,562,343
2021 30 12,710,161 12,710,161
2020 30 7,339,510 7,339,510
525,530 525,530
2021 30 7,865,040 7,865,040
2021 30 4,845,121 4,845,121

2020 30
2019 30 9,669,143 9,669,143
1,478,675 1,478,675
2020 30 11,147,818 11,147,818
2019 30 6,761,897 6,761,897
577,613 577,613
2020 30 7,339,510 7,339,510
2020 30 3,808,308 3,808,308
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2019
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2020

2021

2020
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2021

2020

2019

2020

2019

2020

2020

30

30

30

30

30

30

30

30

30

30

30
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Vermillion

1,379,423 699,505 2,277,245 4,356,173
23,127 54,411 333,578 411,116
(18,085) (18,085)
1,384,465 753,916 2,610,823 4,749,204
1,244,935 642,668 1,844,464 3,732,067
50,754 52,152 249,369 352,275
(18,085) (18,085)
1,277,604 694,820 2,093,833 4,066,257
106,861 59,096 516,991 682,948
1,495,299 1,550,749 3,731,193 6,777,241
16,669 54,666 366,465 437,800
(132,545) (905,910) (1,820,413) (2.858,868)
1,379,423 699,505 2,277,245 4,356,173
1,326,131 1,482,813 3,459,553 6,268,497
51,349 65,765 205,324 322,438
(132,545) (905,910) (1,820,413) (2,858,868)
1,244,935 642,668 1,844,464 3,732,067
134,488 56,837 432,781 624,106
2021 2020 30

4,441,565 3,685,620

1,171,363 1,343,841

47,959 229,155

20,241 165,687

2,549,449 1,654,644

3,230,205 8,927

11,460,782 7,087,874
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3,172,000
634,400
689,371 2020 4,526,633

2021 30 2020 30
6,732,985 5,148,262
25,102,693 24,130,033
31,835,678 29,278,295

2021 30 2020 30
3,663,474 3,396,873
3,052 3,224
53,932 9,787
542,478 1,243,791
121,653 3,131
821,593 821,593
432,030 411,030
5,638,212 5,889,429

282,194 PAYE 2020 348,328 170,357
2020 168,031 52,430 2020 65,391
2021 30 2020 30
400,000
100,000,000
400,000 492,338 492,338
62,500,000 62,500,000 62,500,000
62,992,338 62,992,338
50,000,000 100,000,000 2016
3,400
3,400

2021 30 2020 30

4,050,000 4,050,000
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4,050,000 4,050,000
405
2013
2021 30 2020 30
708,891 50,858 822,476 55,952
2,741,571 12,290 2,835,564 63,148
- 614,899
3,450,462 63,148 4,272,939 119,100
2021 30 2020 30
947,617 886,575
69,017 66,502
33
100 8233

137/239



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

17
2020 COVID-19
COVID-19
COVID-19
18
2021 30
2,145,000 €1,785,454 (€56, 062) (€56, 062)
606,000,000 €4,660,063 €13,965 (€27,698) (£13,733)
£2,542,500 £€2,909,271 €6,276 (€37,893) (€31,617)
€20,241 (£121,653) (£101,412)
2021 12 2022 30
234,683
2020 96,866

€20,241 €20,241
€20,241 €20,241
€121,653 €121,653
€121,653 €121,653
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£2,127,500
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2020 30
€1,778,445 €51,974 €51,974
€3,948,410 €76,918 €76,918
€24,316 (€84) (€84)
€2,370,239 €36,795 (€3,047) €33,748
€165, 687 (€3,131) €162,556
2020 12 2021 30
96,866
€165, 687 €165, 687
€165, 687 €165, 687
€3,131 €3,131
€3,131 €3,131
357
2021 30
24
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SMT Fund Services (lreland) Limited

Statement of financial position
as at 30 September 2021

30 September 30 September
Note 2021 2020
€ €
Fixed assets
Intangible assets 6 4,845,121 3,808,308
Tangible fixed assets 7 682,948 624,106
5,528,069 4,432,414
Current assets
Debtors 8 11,460,782 7,087,874
Cash at bank and in hand 9 31,835,678 29,278,295
43,296,460 36,366,169
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 10 (5,638,212) (5,889,429)
Net current assets 37,658,248 30,476,740
Net assets 43,186,317 34,909,154
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 11 62,992,338 62,992,338
Additional paid in capital 12 4,050,000 4,050,000
Cash flow hedge reserve (112,583) 118,389
Profit and loss account (23,743,438) (32,251,573)
Total shareholders® funds 43,186,317 34,909,154

The accompanying notes form an integral part of this statement of financial position.

On behalf of the board

Director Director 24 January 2022

Keiji Nakamura Peter Callaghan
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SMT Fund Services (Ireland) Limited

Income statement
for the year ended 30 September 2021

30 September 30 September

Note 2021 2020

€ €

Turnover 34,627,650 30,796,780
Administrative expenses 3 (29,221,929) (28,671,314)
Profit on ordinary activities before interest and taxation 5,405,721 2,125,466
Interest expense (82,816) (32,172)
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 4 5,322,905 2,093,294
Taxation on ordinary activities 5 3,185,230 2,437
Profit for the year 8,508,135 2,095,731

All results have been generated by continuing operations.
The accompanying notes form an integral part of this income statement.
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SMT Fund Services (Ireland) Limited

Statement of other comprehensive income
for the year ended 30 September 2021

30 September 30 September

Note 2021 2020

€ €

Profit for the year 8,508,135 2,095,731
Other comprehensive income

Effective portion of changes in fair value of cash flow 18 (263,968) 409,118

hedges

Income tax on other comprehensive income 5 32,996 (51,140)

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of income tax (230,972) 357,978

Total comprehensive income for the year 8,277,163 2,453,709
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SMT Fund Services (Ireland) Limited

Statement of changes in equity
for the year ended 30 September 2021

Called up Additional Cash flow Profit and Total
share paid in hedging loss account equity
capital Capital reserve
€ € € € €

Balance at 1 October 2020 62,992,338 4,050,000 118,389  (32,251,573) 34,909,154
Total comprehensive income for the

period

Profit for the year - - - 8,508,135 8,508,135
Other comprehensive income for the _ _ (230,972) _ (230,972)

period

Total comprehensive income for the

i - - (230,972) 8,508,135 8,277,163
period

Transactions with owners, recorded
directly in equity

Issuance of Shares - - - - _

Total contributions by and
distributions to owners

Balance at 30 September 2021 62,992,338 4,050,000 (112,583) (23,743,438) 43,186,317

Called up Additional Cash flow Profit and Total

share paid in hedging loss account equity

capital Capital reserve

€ € € € €

Balance at 1 October 2019 62,992,338 4,050,000 (239,589) (34,347,304) 32,455,445
Total comprehensive income for the

period
Profit for the year - - - 2,095,731 2,095,731

Other comprehensive income for the

- - - 357,978 - 357,978
period

Total comprehensive income for the

- - - 357,978 2,095,731 2,453,709
period

Transactions with owners, recorded
directly in equity

Issuance of Shares - - - - -

Total contributions by and
distributions to owners

Balance at 30 September 2020 62,992,338 4,050,000 118,389  (82,251,573) 34,909,154
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SMT Fund Services (Ireland) Limited

Notes

Forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2021

1

Accounting Policies

SMT Fund Services (lreland) Limited (the" Company” ) with a registered office at Block 5, Harcourt Centre,
Harcourt Road, Dublin 2, is a private company limited by shares and incorporated and domiciled in Ireland.

The functional and presentation currency of these financial statements is Euro.

The Company®s immediate parent undertaking, Sumitomo Mitsui Trust (lreland) Limited includes the Company in
its consolidated financial statements. The consolidated financial statements of Sumitomo Mitsui Trust
(Ireland) Limited are available to the public and may be obtained from Block 5, Harcourt Centre, Harcourt
Road, Dublin 2, Ireland.

In these financial statements, the Company is considered to be a qualifying entity (for the purposes of this
FRS) and has applied the exemptions available under FRS 102 in respect of the following disclosures:
Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding from the beginning to end of the period;
Cash Flow Statement and related notes; and

Key Management Personnel compensation.

As the consolidated financial statements of the Company®s ultimate parent, Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Holdings
Inc. include the equivalent disclosures, the Company has also taken the exemptions under FRS 102 available in
respect of the following disclosures:
Certain disclosures required by FRS 102.26 Share Based Payments; and,
The disclosures required by FRS 102.11 Basic Financial Instruments and FRS 102.12 Other Financial
Instrument Issues in respect of financial instruments not falling within the fair value accounting rules
of Schedule 3, paragraph 39 of the Companies Act 2014.

The accounting policies set out below have, unless otherwise stated, been applied consistently to all periods
presented in these financial statements.
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SMT Fund Services (lreland) Limited

Notes

Forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2021 (continued)

1

Accounting Policies - (continued)

The principal accounting policies adopted by the Company are as follows:

Basis of Preparation

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 102 (* "FRS 102°%)
The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland and issued by the Financial
Reporting Council, and promulgated for use in lreland by Chartered Accountants lreland. The Company is also
subject to the requirements of the Companies Act 2014.

The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost basis except for the modification to a fair
value basis for certain financial instruments as specified in the accounting policies below.

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and
expense (e.g. useful economic life). The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgements about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the periods in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or
in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.
Interest income and interest expense

Interest income and income expense are recognised in the income statement on an accruals basis.

Turnover and Administration Expenses

Turnover comprises fee income from administration and management services, which is accounted for on an
accruals basis. It also includes income earned from the recharge of services to other group companies.

Turnover and administration expenses are shown exclusive of amounts paid to other service providers. All
amounts are charged at normal commercial rates.
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SMT Fund Services (lreland) Limited

Notes

Forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2021 (continued)

1

Accounting Policies - (continued)

Foreign Currencies

The financial statements are expressed in Euro (€), which is the functional and presentation currency of the
Company .

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated using the exchange rates
prevailing at the balance sheet date. Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are translated at rates
which approximate the rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies which are measured at fair value, are
translated into euro at the date the fair value was determined.

Share capital is translated at the exchange rate prevailing at the date of its issue.

Profits and losses arising from currency translation and on settlement of amounts receivable and payable in
foreign currencies are dealt with in the income statement.

Basic Financial Instruments

Trade and other debtors / creditors

Trade and other debtors are recognised initially at transaction price plus attributable transaction costs.
Trade and other creditors are recognised initially at transaction price less attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition they are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less any impairment losses in the case of trade debtors.

Cash

Cash comprises cash at bank and in hand. Term deposits have maturities of 1 to 3 years, and are repayable on
demand
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SMT Fund Services (lreland) Limited

Notes

Forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2021 (continued)

1

Accounting Policies - (continued)

Other financial instruments

Financial instruments not considered to be Basic financial instruments (Other financial instruments)

Other financial instruments not meeting the definition of Basic Financial Instruments are recognised
initially at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition other financial instruments are measured at fair
value with changes recognised in the income statement except as follows:

- investments in equity instruments that are not publicly traded and whose fair value cannot otherwise be
measured reliably shall be measured at cost less impairment; and

- hedging instruments in a designated hedging relationship shall be recognised as set out below.

Derivative financial instruments and hedging

Derivative financial instruments are recognised at fair value. The gain or loss on remeasurement to fair
value is recognised immediately in income statement. However, where derivatives qualify for hedge accounting,
recognition of any resultant gain or loss depends on the nature of the item being hedged (see below).

Cash flow hedges

Cash flow hedges are used to cover the Company®s exposure to variability in cash flows that is attributable
to particular risk associated with a recognised asset or liability or a firm commitment which could affect
income or expenses. Where a derivative financial instrument is designated as a hedge of the variability in
cash flows of a recognised asset or liability, or a highly probable forecast transaction, the effective part
of any gain or loss on the derivative financial instrument is recognised directly in Other comprehensive
income (* OCI” ). Any ineffective portion of the hedge is recognised immediately in the income statement.

For cash flow hedges, where the forecast transactions resulted in the recognition of a non-financial asset or
non-financial liability, the hedging gain or loss recognised in OCl is included in the initial cost or other
carrying amount of the asset or liability. Alternatively when the hedged item is recognised in income
statement the hedging gain or loss is reclassified to the income statement.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised, or the entity discontinues designation
of the hedge relationship but the hedged forecast transaction is still expected to occur, the cumulative gain
or loss at that point remains in equity and is recognised in accordance with the above policy when the
transaction occurs. If the hedged transaction is no longer expected to take place, the cumulative unrealised
gain or loss recognised in equity is recognised in the income statement immediately.
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SMT Fund Services (lreland) Limited

Notes

Forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2021 (continued)

1

Accounting Policies - (continued)

Taxation

Tax on the income statement for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the income
statement except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity or other comprehensive
income, in which case it is recognised directly in equity or other comprehensive income.

Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year, using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the statement of financial position date, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax is provided on timing differences which arise from the inclusion of income and expenses in tax
assessments in periods different from those in which they are recognised in the financial statements. The
following timing differences are not provided for: differences between accumulated depreciation and tax
allowances for the cost of a fixed asset if and when all conditions for retaining the tax allowances have
been met, to the extent that it is not probable that they will reverse in the foreseeable future and the
reporting entity is able to control the reversal of the timing difference. Deferred tax is not recognised on
permanent differences arising because certain types of income or expense are non-taxable or are disallowable
for tax or because certain tax charges or allowances are greater or smaller than the corresponding income or

expense.
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rate that is expected to apply to the reversal of the related difference,
using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax balances are not

discounted.

Unrelieved tax losses and other deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that is it probable
that they will be recovered against the reversal of deferred tax liabilities or other future taxable profits.

A deferred tax asset is recorded where it is more likely than not to be recoverable. The recoverability of
deferred tax assets is assessed annually by the directors.
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SMT Fund Services (lreland) Limited

Notes

Forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2021 (continued)

1

Accounting Policies - (continued)

Intangible assets

Research and development

Expenditure on research activities is recognised in the income statement as an expense as incurred.

Expenditure on development activities may be capitalised if the product or process is technically and
commercially feasible and the Company intends and has the technical ability and sufficient resources to
complete development, future economic benefits are probable and if the Company can measure reliably the
expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during its development. Development activities involve the
design, construction or testing of the production of new or substantially improved products or processes. The
expenditure capitalised includes the cost of materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
overheads and capitalised borrowing costs. Other development expenditure is recognised in the income
statement as an expense as incurred. Capitalised development expenditure is stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and less accumulated impairment losses.

Intangible fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation is charged in equal instalments on the cost of assets over their expected useful lives and is

included within administration costs.

Useful life
Software 7 years

Asset values are closely monitored and are subject to provisions for impairment where necessary. Assets in
the course of development are not amortised until they are brought into use.

Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less depreciation. Depreciation is charged in equal instalments on
the cost of assets over their expected useful lives and is included within administration costs.

Useful life

Furniture and equipment 5 years
Software 3 years
Mainframe Equipment 3 years
Personal Computers 2 years
Computer Terminals 3 years
Fund administration system 3 years

Asset values are closely monitored and are subject to provisions for impairment where necessary.
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SMT Fund Services (lreland) Limited

Notes
Forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2021 (continued)

1 Accounting Policies - (continued)

Employee benefits

The Company operates a defined contribution pension scheme for employees. Obligations for contributions to
defined contribution pension plans are recognised as an expense in the income statement when they are due.

Additional paid in capital

Subordinated Loans of €4.05 million previously received from the Company®s parent, that are non-interest
bearing and repayable at the Company"s discretion, were reclassified as capital during 2013, after a review
of their terms and conditions, and the receipt during 2013 of confirmation from the Company®s parent and that
these amounts are repayable solely at the volition of the Company and that the Company®s parent will not
demand repayment of these amounts.

2 Ownership and operations

The Company, which is engaged in the provision of administration and management company services to various
funds, is a wholly owned subsidiary of Sumitomo Mitsui Trust (lreland) Limited, a company incorporated in the
Republic of Ireland. The ultimate parent company is Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Holdings Inc. a company
incorporated in Japan.

The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis, and it is the intention of the directors to
continue to develop the activities of the Company in consultation with its parent. Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank
Limited is directly supporting the business development of the Company. On 25 January 2016, the Company
issued new share capital of 34 million €1 ordinary shares, upon the receipt of an investment of €34 million
from its parent company Sumitomo Mitsui Trust (lreland) Limited.

The Company has entered into agreements with various entities to which it provides services. Under these

agreements, the Company has undertaken to provide administration and management company services for an
agreed fee.
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SMT Fund Services (lreland) Limited

Notes
Forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2021 (continued)

3 Administrative expenses

30 September 30 September
2021 2020
€ €
Staff costs 18,988,007 18,197,043
Other administrative expenses 10,233,922 10,474,271
29,221,929 28,671,314
30 September 30 September
2021 2020
€ €

Staff costs comprise:
Wages and salaries 14,362,213 13,270,915
Social welfare costs 1,513,570 1,472,961
Pension costs 947,617 886,575
Other costs 2,164,607 2,566,592
18,988,007 18,197,043

The average number of persons employed by the Company (including directors) during the year was 217
(September 2020: 215). The Company shared the use of facilities with SMT Trustees (lreland) Limited

(* SMTTIL” ) during the period. The related costs were allocated and recharged on an agreed basis, as set out
in service level agreements.
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SMT Fund Services (lreland) Limited

Notes
Forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2021 (continued)

4

Profit on ordinary activities before taxation

The profit on ordinary activities before taxation has been determined after charging the following:

30 September

30 September

2021 2020
€ €

Directors” remuneration:
Fees 94,000 106,000
Other remuneration 759,276 790,276
Defined pension contribution scheme 48,016 43,849
No retirement benefits are accruing for directors.
Auditor®"s remuneration:
Audit 23,000 23,000
Tax advisory services 12,550 6,050
Other assurance services 81,750 81,773
Other non-audit services - -
Depreciation 352,275 322,438
Amortisation of intangible assets 525,530 577,613
Operating lease rentals:
Land & buildings 1,051,431 1,143,479
Other assets 55,953 69,231
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SMT Fund Services (lreland) Limited

Notes
Forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2021 (continued)

5

Taxation on ordinary activities

30 September

30 September

2021 2020
€ €

(a) Total tax recognised in the income statement
Current tax
Current tax on income for the period 3,052 3,224
Under /(over) provision in respect of prior year - -
Deferred taxation
Under / (Over) provision in prior period - -
Origination and reversal of timing differences (3,188,282) (5,661)
Total tax (credit) / expense (3,185,230) (2,437)

30 September

30 September

2021 2020
€ €

(b) Total tax recognised in OCI
Deferred tax charge / (credit) (32,996) 51,140

(c) Tax reconciliation

30 September

30 September

2021 2020
€ €
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 5,322,905 2,093,294
Corporation tax based on standard rate at 12.5%
(September 2020: 12.5%) 665,363 261,661
(Excess) / deficiency of depreciation over capital (145,699) (114,536)
allowances ’ ’
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 301 627
Differences arising from tax at the higher rate 1,526 7,246
Loss relief (utilised) / carried forward (534,721) (157,435)
Recognition of Deferred Tax Asset (3,172,000) -
Total tax (credit) (3,185,230) (2,437)
Income tax on health insurance premiums 75,146 71,592

The Income tax on health insurance premiums is included in other costs as per note 3 above.
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SMT Fund Services (lreland) Limited

Notes
Forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2021 (continued)

6 Intangible Fixed Assets

As at 30 September 2021 Software Total
€ €
Cost
At 30 September 2020 11,147,818 11,147,818
Additions during the year 1,562,343 1,562,343
Disposals during the year - -
At 30 September 2021 12,710,161 12,710,161
Amortisation
At 30 September 2020 7,339,510 7,339,510
Amortisation for the year 525,530 525,530
Disposals during the year - -
At 30 September 2021 7,865,040 7,865,040
Net book value at 30 September 2021 4,845,121 4,845,121
As at 30 September 2020 Software Total
€ €
Cost
At 30 September 2019 9,669,143 9,669,143
Additions during the year 1,478,675 1,478,675
Disposals during the year - -
At 30 September 2020 11,147,818 11,147,818
Amortisation
At 30 September 2019 6,761,897 6,761,897
Amortisation for the year 577,613 577,613
Disposals during the year - -
At 30 September 2020 7,339,510 7,339,510
Net book value at 30 September 2020 3,808,308 3,808,308

The intangible asset relating to the development of Advent Geneva and Paladyne as the core fund
administration system has been fully amortised.

The Company has been working to replace its front-end client reporting delivery portal with Vermillion which

went live on 1 August 2019. The additions during the current period are related to Paladyne, NTAS development
costs and further development of the core administration system.
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Forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2021 (continued)

7

Tangible Fixed Assets

As at 30 September 2021

Cost

At 30 September 2020
Additions during the year
Disposals during the ear
At 30 September 2021

Depreciation

At 30 September 2020
Depreciation for the year
Disposals during the year
At 30 September 2021

Net book value at 30 September 2021

As at 30 September 2020

Cost

At 30 September 2019
Additions during the year
Disposals during the year
At 30 September 2020

Depreciation

At 30 September 2019
Depreciation for the year
Disposals during the year
At 30 September 2020

Net book value at 30 September 2020

Furniture & Software Computer Total
Equipment Equipment
€ € € €
1,379,423 699,505 2,277,245 4,356,173
23,127 54,411 333,578 411,116
(18,085) - - (18,085)
1,384,465 753,916 2,610,823 4,749,204
1,244,935 642,668 1,844,464 3,732,067
50,754 52,152 249,369 352,275
(18,085) - - (18,085)
1,277,604 694,820 2,093,833 4,066,257
106,861 59,096 516,991 682,948
Furniture & Software Computer Total
Equipment Equipment
€ € € €
1,495,299 1,550,749 3,731,193 6,777,241
16,669 54,666 366,465 437,800
(132,545) (905,910) (1,820,413) (2,858,868)
1,379,423 699,505 2,277,245 4,356,173
1,326,131 1,482,813 3,459,553 6,268,497
51,349 65,765 205,324 322,438
(132,545) (905,910) (1,820,413) (2,858,868)
1,244,935 642,668 1,844,464 3,732,067
134,488 56,837 432,781 624,106
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Forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2021 (continued)

8 Debtors: amounts falling due within one year

Fee debtors
Prepayments and accrued income
Other debtors

Short term asset on derivatives
Amount owed by related companies

Deferred tax

30 September 30 September
2021 2020

€ €

4,441,565 3,685,620
1,171,363 1,343,841
47,959 229,155
20,241 165,687
2,549,449 1,654,644
3,230,205 8,927
11,460,782 7,087,874

The deferred tax asset recorded above includes an amount of €3,172,000 that relates to the initial

recognition of unused tax losses. The deferred tax asset has been calculated on the basis of the next 5 years

projected profitability. The net reversal of the deferred tax asset expected to occur in the next reporting

period is €634,400, due to the on-going profitability of the company.

In addition the Company has a further unrecognised deferred tax asset of €689,371 (September 2020: €

4,526,633). This has not been recognised due to the level of uncertainty over the timing of its recovery.

The amount owed by the related companies includes a balance relating to services as outlined in the

management services agreement. The balance is unsecured and interest free and repayable on demand.

9 Cash at bank and in hand

Current accounts
Callable deposits

30 September 30 September
2021 2020

€ €

6,732,985 5,148,262
25,102,693 24,130,033
31,835,678 29,278,295
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SMT Fund Services (lreland) Limited

Notes
Forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2021 (continued)

10 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

30 September 30 September

2021 2020

€ €

Accruals 3,663,474 3,396,873
Corporation tax 3,052 3,224
Interest payable 53,932 9,787
Trade creditors 542,478 1,243,791
Short term liability on derivatives 121,653 3,131
Amount owed to parent 821,593 821,593
Amount owed to related companies 432,030 411,030
5,638,212 5,889,429

Accruals include creditors in relation to PAYE of €282,194 (2020: €348,328), PRSI of €170,357 (2020: €
168,031) and other taxes of €52,430 (2020: €65,391).

The amount owed to the parent company is unsecured and interest free.

The amount owed to the related companies includes a balance relating to services as outlined in the services
agreement. The balance is unsecured and interest free and repayable on demand.

11 Called up share capital

30 September 30 September
2021 2020
€ €
Authorised
400,000 ordinary shares of GBP £1 each
100,000,000 ordinary shares of EUR €1 each
Allotted, called up and fully paid
400,000 ordinary shares of GBP £1 each 492,338 492,338
62,500,000 ordinary shares of EUR €1 each 62,500,000 62,500,000
62,992,338 62,992,338

On 8 January 2016, the Company increased its authorised share capital from 50,000,000 to 100,000,000 ordinary
shares of Euro 1 each. On 25 January 2016, the Company issued new share capital of 34 million €1 shares, upon
the receipt of an investment of €34 million from its parent company Sumitomo Mitsui Trust (lreland) Limited.
The proceeds of the allotment will be used to fund the continued development of the Company business.
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SMT Fund Services (lreland) Limited

Notes

Forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2021 (continued)

12

13

Additional paid in capital

30 September 30 September

2021 2020

€ €

Additional paid in capital 4,050,000 4,050,000
4,050,000 4,050,000

In connection with €4.05 million of the total amounts received to date by the Company under the terms of the
subordinated loan arrangements for the non-interest bearing loans, the Directors noted the resolution made in
September 2013 by Sumitomo Mitsui Trust (lreland) Limited (the “ Parent Company” ) that they would not demand
repayment of the loans and that they are repayable solely at the volition of the Company. Accordingly, as
these amounts have now been confirmed as non-repayable and do not bear interest or carry any other economic
obligation they were re-classified on the statement of financial position from long-term liabilities to
capital, in order to better reflect the capital nature of the transactions.

Commitments

Annual commitments under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

30 September 30 September

2021 2020
Land and Other Land and Other

buildings buildings
€ € € €

Operating leases which expire:

Within one year 708,891 50,858 822,476 55,952
In the second to fifth years inclusive 2,741,571 12,290 2,835,564 63,148
Over five years - - 614,899 -
3,450,462 63,148 4,272,939 119,100

Under an agreement, the Company has undertaken to provide or procure company secretarial and general
administration and support services to SMT Trustees (Ireland) Limited and Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank Limited
(London Branch), formerly known as Sumitomo Mitsui Trust (UK) Limited, a custody company based in the UK. In

return, the Companies have agreed that a fee will be paid for the services provided.
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Notes

Forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2021 (continued)

14

15

16

17

Pension costs

30 September 30 September

2021 2020

€ €

Pension charge for year 947,617 886,575
Pension charge payable at end of year 69,017 66,502

The Company operates a defined contribution pension scheme for its executive directors and employees.

Related parties

The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Holdings Inc. whose consolidated financial
statements are publicly available. The Company is availing of the exemption under Section 33 of FRS 102
Related Party Disclosures® to not disclose transactions with other group undertakings which would be
eliminated on consolidation in the financial statements of the group.

Ultimate parent company

The Company®s immediate parent undertaking is Sumitomo Mitsui Trust (lreland) Limited, a company incorporated
in Ireland. The Company"s ultimate parent undertaking is Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Holdings Inc., a company
incorporated in Japan. The largest group in which the financial statements are consolidated is that headed by
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Holdings Inc. Copies of the financial statements of Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Holdings Inc.
are available to the public and may be obtained from 1-4-1 Marunouchi, Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo 100-8233, Japan.

The smallest group in which the results of the Company are consolidated is that headed by Sumitomo Mitsui
Trust (lreland) Limited. Copies of the financial statements of Sumitomo Mitsui Trust (lreland) Limited are
available to the public and may be obtained from Block 5, Harcourt Centre, Harcourt Road, Dublin 2, lreland.

Post balance sheet events

The Company has had to contend with the challenges of COVID-19 since March 2020. The Company continues to
deal with the challenges of operating in a working from home environment in an effective and efficient
manner. Whilst the vaccine deployment is a very positive development, nevertheless the impact of COVID-19
will continue for many months to come. The Company is adopting a prudent outlook to its revenue projections
to take account of the uncertainties of the full COVID-19 impact and the economic adjustments that will occur
once Government supports begin to recede.

There were no other post balance sheet events which require amendment to or disclosure in the financial
statements.
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SMT Fund Services (lreland) Limited

Notes
Forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2021 (continued)

18 Financial instruments - Hedge accounting

The following forward foreign currency contracts were open as at 30 September 2021.

_ - Total
Buy Euro Unrealézgg Unre?:;:§§ Unrealised
Gain / (Loss)

Sell US Dollar
$2,145,000 €1,785,454 - (€56,062) (€56,062)
Sell Japanese Yen
\606,000,000 €4,660,063 €13,965 (€£27,698) (€13,733)
Sell British Pounds
£2,542,500 €2,909,271 €6,276 (€37,893) (€31,617)

€20,241 (€121,653) (€101,412)

These cash flow hedges will settle quarterly over the period 1 December 2021 - 30 September 2022. The fair
value on the open contracts was calculated using WM Reuters forward fx rates. During the year a loss of €
234,683 (2020: loss of €96,866) was reclassified to the income statement, having previously been recorded in
the statement of other comprehensive income statement in accordance with the cash flow hedging policy. No
collateral exists for any derivative contracts.

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
€ € € €
Assets
Forward currency contracts €20,241 €20,241
Total - €20,241 - €20,241
Liabilities
Forward currency contracts €121,653 €121,653
Total - €121,653 - €121,653

Unrealised future gains and losses on these forward contracts have been recognised directly in the statement
of financial position and the statement of other comprehensive income (page 11), in accordance with the
Company*s cash flow hedge accounting policy.
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SMT Fund Services (lreland) Limited

Notes
Forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2021 (continued)

18 Financial instruments - Hedge accounting (continued)

The following forward foreign currency contracts were open as at 30 September 2020.

_ - Total
Buy Euro Unrealézgg Unre?:;:§§ Unrealised
Gain / (Loss)
Sell US Dollar
$2,035,000 €1,778,445 €51,974 - €51,974
Sell Japanese Yen
\480,000,000 €3,948,410 €76,918 - €76,918
Sell Australian Dollar
$40,000 €24,316 - (€84) (€84)
Sell British Pounds
£2,127,500 €2,370,239 €36,795 (€3,047) €33,748
€165,687 (€3,131) €162,556

These cash flow hedges settled over the quarterly over the period 1 December 2020 - 30 September 2021. The
fair value on the open contracts was calculated using WM Reuters forward fx rates. During the year a loss of
€96,866 (2019: loss of €363,218) was reclassified to the income statement, having previously been recorded in
the statement of other comprehensive income statement in accordance with the cash flow hedging policy. No
collateral exists for any derivative contracts.

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
€ € € €
Assets
Forward currency contracts €165,687 €165,687
Total - €165,687 - €165,687
Liabilities
Forward currency contracts €3,131 €3,131
Total - €3,131 - €3,131

Unrealised future gains and losses on these forward contracts have been recognised directly in the statement
of financial position and the statement of other comprehensive income (page 11), in accordance with the
Company*s cash flow hedge accounting policy.
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SMT Fund Services (lreland) Limited

Notes
Forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2021 (continued)

19 CGuarantee under Irish Companies Act, 2014

Under Section 357 (1) (b) of the Irish Companies Act, 2014 companies registered in Ireland may be exempted
from filing their individual accounts provided that their liabilities are irrevocably guaranteed by a Parent
Company, which is required to be a registered Company of a Member State of the European Union. The Parent
Company must incorporate the results of the subsidiaries into its Group accounts. The results of the Company
have been consolidated into the results of the immediate Parent Company and Sumitomo Mitsui Trust (Ireland)
Limited has agreed to irrevocably guarantee the liabilities of the Company as at 30 September 2021, in
accordance with Section 357 of the Act.

20 Approval of the financial statements

The financial statements were approved by the board of directors on 24 January 2022.
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2022 31
2022 31 2021 30

( ) C D ( ) « D
5,453,870 740,799 4,845,121 658,113
822,213 111,681 682,948 92,765
6,276,083 852,480 5,528,069 750,878
6,920,423 940,001 5,660,888 768,918
2,860,514 388,544 2,549,449 346,292
3,216,523 436,900 3,230,205 438,759
0 0 0 0
122,055 16,579 20,241 2,749
34,815,538 4,728,995 31,835,678 4,324,240
47,935,053 6,511,018 43,296,460 5,880,958
(4,568,572) (620,549) (4,205,952) (571,294)
(3,052) (415) (3,052) (415)
0 0 0 0
(1,244,623) (169,057) (1,253,623) (170,280)
(86,026) (11,685) (53,932) (7,326)
(112,898) (15,335) (121,653) (16,524)
48,195,965 6,546,458 43,186,317 5,865,997
62,992,338 8,556,249 62,992,338 8,556,249
4,050,000 550,112 4,050,000 550,112
(2,014) Q74) (112,583) (15,292)
(23,743,438) (3,225,071) (32,251,573) (4,380,731)
4,899,079 665,442 8,508,135 1,155,660
48,195,965 6,546,458 43,186,317 5,865,997
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2022 31
2022 31 2021 30
12
20,212,882 2,745,516 34,627,650 4,703,474
(69,098) (9, 386) (82,816) (11,249)
20,143,784 2,736,130 34,544,834 4,692,225
(15,231,023) (2,068,830) (29,221,929) (3,969, 215)
() 4,912,761 667,300 5,322,905 723,010
(13,682) (1,858) 3,185,230 432,650
() 4,899,079 665,442 8,508,135 1,155,660
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Independent auditors® report to the unitholders of Daiwa Equity Fund Series

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion

In our opinion, Daiwa Equity Fund Series” financial statements:
give a true and fair view of the Trust"s assets, liabilities and financial position as at 15 January
2022 and of its results for the year then ended; and
have been properly prepared in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Practice in lreland
(accounting standards issued by the Financial Reporting Council of the UK, including Financial
Reporting Standard 102“ The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of
Ireland” and Irish law).

We have audited the financial statements, included within the Annual Report and Audited Financial
Statements, which comprise:

the Statement of Financial Position as at 15 January 2022;

the Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year then ended;

the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended;

the Schedule of Investments as at 15 January 2022; and

the notes to the financial statements, which include a description of the significant accounting

policies.

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (lreland) (* ISAs
(Ireland)” ) and applicable law.

Our responsibilities under ISAs (lreland) are further described in the Auditors® responsibilities for
the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We remained independent of the Trust in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the financial statements in Ireland, which includes IAASA"s Ethical Standard, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

Conclusions relating to going concern

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Trust®s
ability to continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from the date on which the
financial statements are authorised for issue.

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the manager®s use of the going concern
basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this conclusion is not a
guarantee as to the Trust"s ability to continue as a going concern.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the manager with respect to going concern are described
in the relevant sections of this report.
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Reporting on other information

The other information comprises all of the information in the Annual Report and Audited Financial
Statements other than the financial statements and our auditors® report thereon. The manager is
responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other
information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, except to the extent otherwise
explicitly stated in this report, any form of assurance thereon. In connection with our audit of the
financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify an apparent
material inconsistency or material misstatement, we are required to perform procedures to conclude
whether there is a material misstatement of the financial statements or a material misstatement of the
other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report
based on these responsibilities.

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit
Responsibilities of the manager for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of Alternative Investment Fund Manager®s Responsibilities set
out on page 5, the manager is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance
with the applicable framework giving a true and fair view.

The manager is also responsible for such internal control as the manager determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the manager is responsible for assessing the Trust"s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the manager intends to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Auditors® responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors” report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with I1SAs (lreland) will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

Our audit testing might include testing complete populations of certain transactions and balances,
possibly using data auditing techniques. However, it typically involves selecting a limited number of
items for testing, rather than testing complete populations. We will often seek to target particular
items for testing based on their size or risk characteristics. In other cases, we will use audit
sampling to enable us to draw a conclusion about the population from which the sample is selected.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on
the 1AASA website at:

https://www. iaasa. ie/getmedia/b2389013-1cf6-458b-9b8F-298202dc9c3a/Description of auditors
responsibilities for audit.pdf.
This description forms part of our auditors® report.
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Use of this report

This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for the unitholders as a body in
accordance with the European Union (Alternative Investment Fund Managers) Regulations 2013 and for no
other purpose. We do not, in giving this opinion, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose
or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly
agreed by our prior consent in writing.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
Dublin, Ireland

10 May 2022

The maintenance and integrity of the Daiwa Securities Co. Ltd. website is the responsibility of the
manager; the work carried out by the auditors does not involve consideration of these matters and,
accordingly, the auditors accept no responsibility for any changes that may have occurred to the
financial statements since they were initially presented on the website.

Legislation in the Republic of Ireland governing the preparation and dissemination of financial
statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.
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Independent auditor’s report to the member of SMT Fund Services (Ireland) Limited

Report on the audit of the financia statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of SMT Fund Services (Ireland) Limited (‘the Company’) for the year
ended 30 September 2021 set out on pages 10 to 33, which comprise the income statement, statement of other
comprehensive income, statement of financial position, statement of changes in equity and related notes, including
the summary of significant accounting policies set out in note 1. The financial reporting framework that has been
applied in their preparation is Irish Law and FRS 102 The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and
Republic of Ireland issued in the United Kingdom by the Financial Reporting Council.

I'n our opinion:

the financial statements give atrue and fair view of the assets, liabilities and financial position of the Company
as at 30 September 2021 and of its profit for the year then ended,;

the financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with FRS 102 The Financial Reporting
Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland; and

the financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act
2014.

Basisfor opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (Ireland) (ISAs (Ireland)) and
applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for
the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with
ethical requirementsthat are relevant to our audit of financial statementsin Ireland, including the Ethical Standard
issued by the Irish Auditing and Accounting Supervisory Authority (IAASA), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilitiesin accordance with these requirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statemnets, we have concluded that the directors use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financia statementsis appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events continue
as agoing concern for a period of at |east twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authorised
for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are described in the
relevant sections of this report.

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information presented in the Annual Report together with the financial
statements. The other information comprises the information included in the directors report, directors and other
information and statement of directors responsibilities. The financia statements and our auditor's report thereon
do not comprise part of the other informationl. Our opinion on the financia statements does not cover the other
information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, except as explicitly stated below, any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.
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Our responsibility isto read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether, based on our financial
statements audit work, the information therein is materially misstated or inconsistent with the financial statements
or our audit knowledge. Based solely on that work we have not identified material misstatements in the other
information.

Based solely on our work on the other information undertaken during the course of the audit, we report that:
we have not identified material misstatementsin the directors report;
in our opinion, the information given in the directors report is consistent with the financial statements; and
in our opinion, the directors report has been prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2014.

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2014
We have obtained all the information and explanations which we consider necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion the accounting records of the Company were sufficient to permit the financial statementsto be
readily and properly audited and the financial statements are in agreement with the accounting records.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

The Companies Act 2014 requires us to report to you if, in our opinion, the disclosures of directors remuneration
and transactions required by Sections 305 to 312 of the Act are not made. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Respective responsibilities and restrictions on use
Responsibilities of directors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the directors responsibilities statement set out on page 6, the directors are responsible
for: the preparation of the financial statementsincluding being satisfied that they give atrue and fair view; such
internal control asthey determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern; and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic aternative
but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as awhole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assuranceis ahigh level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
ISAs (Ireland) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financia statements.

A fuller description of our responsibilitiesis provided on IAASA’s website at
http://www.iaasa.ie/Publications/ Auditing-standards/| nternati onal - Standards-on-A uditing-for-use-in-
I re/Description-of -the-auditor-s-responsibilities-for.

The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities

Our report is made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Section 391 of the Companies
Act 2014. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’ s members those matters we
arerequired to state to them in an auditor’ s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law,
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we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company’s members, as a

body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

John Ahern Date: 24 January 2022
for and on behalf of

KPMG

Chartered Accountants, Statutory Audit Firm
1 Harbourmaster Place

IFSC

Dublinl

239/239



	表紙
	本文
	第一部ファンド情報
	第１ファンドの状況
	１ファンドの性格
	（１）ファンドの目的及び基本的性格
	（２）ファンドの沿革
	（３）ファンドの仕組み
	（４）ファンドに係る法制度の概要
	（５）開示制度の概要
	（６）監督官庁の概要

	２投資方針
	（１）投資方針
	（２）投資対象
	（３）運用体制
	（４）分配方針
	（５）投資制限

	３投資リスク
	４手数料等及び税金
	（１）申込手数料
	（２）買戻し手数料
	（３）管理報酬等
	（４）その他の手数料等
	（５）課税上の取扱い

	５運用状況
	（１）投資状況
	（２）投資資産
	①投資有価証券の主要銘柄
	②投資不動産物件
	③その他投資資産の主要なもの

	（３）運用実績
	①純資産の推移
	②分配の推移
	③収益率の推移

	（４）販売及び買戻しの実績


	第２管理及び運営
	１申込（販売）手続等
	２買戻し手続等
	３資産管理等の概要
	（１）資産の評価
	（２）保管
	（３）信託期間
	（４）計算期間
	（５）その他

	４受益者の権利等
	（１）受益者の権利等
	（２）為替管理上の取扱い
	（３）本邦における代理人
	（４）裁判管轄等


	第３ファンドの経理状況
	１財務諸表
	（１）貸借対照表
	（２）損益計算書
	（３）投資有価証券明細表等

	２ファンドの現況
	純資産額計算書


	第４外国投資信託受益証券事務の概要

	第二部特別情報
	第１管理会社の概況
	１管理会社の概況
	２事業の内容及び営業の概況
	３管理会社の経理状況
	（１）貸借対照表
	（２）損益計算書

	４利害関係人との取引制限
	５その他

	第２その他の関係法人の概況
	１名称、資本金の額及び事業の内容
	２関係業務の概要
	３資本関係

	第３投資信託制度の概要
	第４参考情報
	第５その他

	監査報告書

